
 

MINUTES 

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 08, 2025 AT 6:00 PM 

     MUNICIPAL BUILDING - 150 EAST MONROE STREET 

WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382 
 

1. MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison, 
Councilwoman Holly Atkins 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr. 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Town 
Attorney Paul Cassell, Chief Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones, Police Chief Joel Hash, 
Landscape Architect/Grants Administrator John Woods, Assistant Computer Operations 
Manager Jeff Hooper, Police Officer Brandi Holmes, Robert Green, Vanessa Baldwin, 
Janet S. Johnson, Arthur L. Johnson, Sr., Kerry Eans, Tommy Atkins 

2. RE: CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order.  

3. RE: ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

Mayor Taylor established that a quorum of Council members was present.  

4. RE: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilwoman Pattison.  

5. RE: 7:00 P.M. RECESS 

Mayor Taylor advised that for informational purposes only, the agenda includes a 7:00 
p.m. scheduled recess.  

6. RE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the Approval of Agenda. She inquired if 
there was a motion to approve the agenda as presented or to somehow be amended.  

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilwoman Atkins to 
amend the agenda to remove agenda item 11B. Continued discussion regarding the 
purchase of a boom flail tractor for the Public Works Department. Mayor Taylor inquired if 
there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with 
the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Vice-Mayor Johnson, 
Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison.  

7. RE: CONSENT AGENDA 

A. RE: MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION AND THE REGULAR MEETING OF 
AUGUST 25, 2025, AND THE WORK SESSION OF AUGUST 26, 2025 

Mayor Taylor presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the work 
session and the regular meeting of August 25, 2025, and the work session of August 
26, 2025. She inquired if there was a motion to approve the consent agenda as 
presented. 

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. Councilwoman Atkins 
stated that she would like to abstain from voting on the August 26, 2025, work 
session minutes, due to her absence. There being no further discussion, the motion 
was approved with the following voting results: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor 



Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, Councilwoman Atkins. Voting Abstaining: 
Councilwoman Atkins, on the August 26, 2025, work session minutes. 

8. RE: CITIZENS' PERIOD 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Citizens' Period. She stated that there 
are citizens listed on the sign-in sheet who would like to address the Council during 
Citizens' Period. She requested Mr. Robert Green to come to the podium and state his 
name and address for the recording of the minutes.  

Mr. Robert Green was recognized and stated that he lives on Lahue Drive in Wytheville. 
He then addressed the Council regarding the Oakwood Cemetery and his concerns 
regarding the potential realignment of the cemetery fence. Mayor Taylor thanked Mr. 
Green for his comments.  

Mr. Arthur Johnson was recognized and stated that he would like to discuss the Harriston 
Memorial Lodge and the Oakwood Cemetery. He then addressed the Council regarding 
his concerns and opinions on the Oakwood Cemetery fence realignment and the Harriston 
Memorial Lodge. A brief discussion was held regarding the reason the Harriston Memorial 
Lodge building was brought up for discussion at a previous Town Council meeting. Mayor 
Taylor explained why she brought up the Harriston Memorial Lodge topic. Further 
discussion ensued about the property. Mr. Johnson noted that he would meet with Building 
Official Tim Spraker about the Lodge. Vice-Mayor Johnson then addressed Mayor Taylor 
regarding her comments to Mr. Johnson. Mayor Taylor stated that she apologized if any of 
her comments offended Mr. Johnson.  

Mayor Taylor inquired if there was anyone else attending the meeting who would like to 
address the Council during Citizens' Period. There being none, she proceeded with the 
agenda.  

9. RE: PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS  

A. RE: REAPPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING 
AUTHORITY 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider the reappointment of 
Ellen McDaniel to the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority (term expires 
September 8, 2025). She inquired if there was a motion to reappoint Ellen McDaniel 
to the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority for a four (4) year term (term 
expires September 8, 2029).  

Motion made by Councilwoman Atkins, Seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins.  

B. RE: APPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE TREE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider the appointment of a 
member to the Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee to fill the unexpired term of 
James Cohen (term expires May 14, 2027). She inquired if there was a motion to 
appoint Derek Williams to the Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee to fill the 
unexpired term of James Cohen (term expires May 14, 2027).  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins.  

C. RE: EVENT REQUEST - ART AT THE CROSSROADS 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider the request of Shane 
Terry to use the Main Street sidewalks from Tazewell Street to 4th Street, on 
Saturday, October 18, 2025, to conduct an Art at the Crossroads event. She inquired 
if there was a motion to approve the request of Shane Terry to use the Main Street 



sidewalks from Tazewell Street to 4th Street, on Saturday, October 18, 2025, to 
conduct an Art at the Crossroads event.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins. 

D. RE: RESOLUTION - LITHIA ROAD SIDEWALK CONNECTOR PROJECT 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider the adoption of a 
resolution regarding the Lithia Road Sidewalk Connector Project. Landscape 
Architect/Grants Administrator John Woods presented information regarding the 
$896,112 savings in the local share from the previous estimate, and the $680,654 
that will still be needed in local funding for this project. He noted that the resolution 
used for this project is standard and has been used for other Transportation 
Alternative Projects. Discussion was held regarding the Virginia Department of 
Transportation (VDOT) grant, when the grant funding will be announced, how much 
the grant will refund the Town and when the closing date is for the grant. There being 
no further discussion, Mayor Taylor inquired if there was a motion to adopt a 
resolution regarding the Lithia Road Sidewalk Connector Project. 

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.  

10. RE: REPORTS 

A. RE: UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is upcoming meetings. Chief Deputy 
Clerk Brandi Jones presented the upcoming meetings, as follows: 

1. The Wytheville Planning Commission will meet on Thursday, September 11, 2025, 
at 6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.  

2. The Downtown Wytheville, Incorporated (DTW) Board of Directors will meet on 
Monday, September 15, 2025, at 5:30 p.m., at the DTW Office.  

3. The Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority will meet on Wednesday, 
September 17, 2025, at 12:00 p.m., at the Housing Authority Office.  

4. The New River Regional Water Authority will meet on Thursday, September 18, 
2025, at 10:00 a.m., at the Water Plant in Austinville.  

5. The District III Board of Directors will meet on Thursday, September 18, 2025, at 
6:00 p.m., at the Marion Office.  

6. The Homestead Museum Advisory Board will meet on Friday, September 19, 
2025, at 10:00 a.m., at the Jackson property.  

7. The next regular scheduled Wytheville Town Council meeting will be held on 
Monday, September 22, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.  

11. RE: OTHER BUSINESS 

A. RE: CONTINUED DISCUSSION REGARDING THE TOWN COUNCIL RULES OF 
PROCEDURE FOR 2025 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is continued discussion regarding 
the Town Council Rules of Procedure for 2025. Interim Town Manager Corvin noted 
that the proposed changes to the Rules of Procedure are highlighted in yellow, and 
that no action is required at this meeting. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised that 
she would like for the Council to review the proposed changes and bring any 
changes that they may have back to her, so that she can add them to the next 



version of the Town Council Rules of Procedure. Councilwoman Atkins commented 
that there was a situation, after a previous meeting, where one Council member 
verbally attacked another Council member. She inquired if some verbiage could be 
added to the Rules of Procedure that would help protect Council members in those 
situations. Interim Town Manager Corvin reviewed verbiage that she included in the 
current version of the Rules of Procedure that addresses the decorum of the Council. 
She stated that the Mayor or Vice-Mayor, in the Mayor's absence, can call a Council 
member out of order, and that they have the discretion to adopt a resolution 
recognizing the member's failure to maintain decorum. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired 
about the section that states no agenda item suggested by a Town Council member 
shall be placed on the agenda without it being a consensus of the Council to discuss 
the matter and stated that she disagrees with that verbiage. She then explained why 
she does not agree with the portion regarding Town Council members placing items 
on the agenda. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that she would strike this 
language and bring it back for the Council's consideration at a future meeting. 
Councilwoman Atkins inquired if language was added to the Rules of Procedure 
regarding Council members not being able to ask Staff members to perform certain 
tasks. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that language was added stating that 
Town Council members shall refrain from asking Town Management or Staff to do 
anything that is illegal or ethically wrong. Discussion continued regarding the sections 
of the Rules of Procedure that refer to Town Council members asking Town 
Management and Staff to perform tasks, and Town Council members adding items to 
the meeting agendas. Interim Town Manager Corvin noted that this matter would be 
on the next Town Council meeting agenda for further consideration.   

B. RE: COUNCIL MEMBER TIME 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Council Member Time. She 
inquired if Vice-Mayor Johnson had anything she would like to discuss during Council 
Member Time. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she did not have anything to discuss 
during Council Member Time.  

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Atkins had anything that she would like to 
discuss during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Atkins stated that she did not 
have anything to discuss during Council Member Time.  

Mayor Taylor stated that, on behalf of Town staff, she would request that the Council 
give some thought to the idea of not scheduling so many Meet and Greet Sessions 
when they may not be necessary. Councilwoman Atkins stated that she would like to 
continue with Meet and Greet Sessions, however, it was her understanding that there 
would not be anymore work sessions scheduled, at this time. She noted that she 
likes to get information from the Committee applicants during the Meet and Greet 
Sessions.  

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Pattison had anything that she would like to 
discuss during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Pattison stated that she 
attended the bench dedication in honor of former Lieutenant Dewey Clemmons. She 
noted that she would like to thank Vice-Mayor Johnson for helping Lieutenant 
Clemmons' family get this bench dedicated in his honor. Councilwoman Pattison 
commented that the dedication ceremony was very moving. Vice-Mayor Johnson 
stated that Mr. and Mrs. Clemmons had lunch on the bench following the dedication. 

12. RE: CLOSED MEETING 

A. RE: CLOSED MEETING PURSUANT TO § 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) CONSULTATION 
WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING SPECIFIC LEGAL MATTERS; PURSUANT 
TO § 2.2-3711 (A.) (19.) DISCUSSION REGARDING SECURITY IN TOWN 
FACILITIES 

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to go into a Closed Meeting 
pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel regarding specific 
legal matters and pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (19.) Discussion regarding security in 
Town facilities. She inquired if there was a motion to go into a Closed Meeting.  

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 



motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins. (6:41 p.m.)  

B. RE: CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to certify the Closed Meeting. 
She noted that it would also be necessary to reconvene into open session. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was a motion to certify the Closed Meeting pursuant to § 2.2-
3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel regarding specific legal matters and 
pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (19.) Discussion regarding security in Town facilities, and 
that only public business matters were heard, discussed or considered by the 
Council.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison. 
(7:30 p.m.)  

13. RE: ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to be discussed, Mayor Taylor adjourned the meeting. 
(7:31 p.m.) 

 

 

                 
       Beth A. Taylor, Mayor 

 

 

         
Brandi N. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk 


